
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 18 April 2022Thursday, 14 

April 2022.  
 01476 406080 

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Companies 
Committee  

     
 

 

Tuesday, 26 April 2022 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, 

 St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley, 
Councillor Susan Sandall, Councillor Jill Thomas and Councillor Mark Whittington 
 

Agenda 
 

1.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 11) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
 
To consider updates on Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

(Page 13) 

 Exclusion of Press and Public 
Some of the appendices to the reports at agenda items 5, 6 and 7 below contain 
information which is exempt from publication. The press and public may 
therefore be excluded during discussion of these agenda items under paragraph 
3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) at the 
relevant stage of the discussion and debate. 

 

 

5.   East Midlands Building Consultancy 2021/22 Update 
 
The report provides an overview of the performance of the East Midlands 
Building Consultancy (EMBC) partnership during 2021/22. 

(Pages 15 - 23) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

6.   Gravitas Housing Limited Housing update 
 
The report provides an update with respect to the Wherry’s Lane Bourne 
development project. 
 

(Pages 25 - 33) 

7.   LeisureSK Limited Business Plan 
 
The report provides an update on the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd to cover 
the period April 2022 to March 2023. 
 

(Pages 35 - 76) 

8.   Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
 

(Page 77) 

9.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 

Meeting of the 
Companies Committee 
 
Tuesday, 25 January 2022, 2.00 pm 
 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham.  NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 
 

Committee Members present  
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
Councillor Jill Thomas 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
 

 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Barry Dobson (Cabinet Member for Leisure) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (The Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy) 
Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing) 
 

Other Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Virginia Moran 
 

Company Directors in attendance 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke ((InvestSK Limited and Gravitas Housing Limited) The Leader 
of the Council)) 
Councillor Robert Reid (Auber’s Ridge Management Company Limited) 
Ken Lyon (Environment SK Limited) 
Richard Wyles (Gravitas Housing Limited) 
 

Officers in attendance 
 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Gary Smith (Director of Commercial and Operations) 
Karen Whitfield (Head of Leisure and Cultural Services) 
Claire Moses (Head of Revenues and Benefits) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Services Officer)  

 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

31. Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Susan Sandall. 
 

  32.    Disclosure of interests 
 

There were none. 
 

33. Minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2021 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2021 were proposed, seconded 
and AGREED as a correct record, subject to the following amendment: 

 

• That the appointment of Councillor Paul Wood as a Director of Environment SK 
Ltd be clarified as personal, based on his abilities rather than on behalf of the 
Independent Group. 

 
34. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
Members noted the updates on actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 
An enquiry was made regarding the outcome of the relaunch of the Stamford 
Business Club.  It was noted that Grantham, Bourne and Deepings meetings had 
been re-launched previously. 
 
The Leader of the Council clarified that the meetings had not taken place yet but 
were to begin within the next couple of months. 
 

35. Gravitas Housing Ltd - verbal update 
 
Members were presented with a verbal update with respect of Gravitas Housing Ltd. 
 
Richard Wyles (Director of Gravitas Housing Ltd) informed the Committee that a 
further report would be brought to the next Companies Committee meeting in a 
written capacity so as to confirm an updated financial position. 
 
Members were informed that approximately £964,000 in total had been delivered to 
the Council as a result of the housing development through Gravitas Housing Ltd.  
Of the 20 apartments and 5 townhouses, 19 apartments and 2 townhouses had 
been sold.   The Director continued that since the relaunch, interest in the 
apartments had accelerated and offers were made but had not been viable for the 
company to consider. 
 
The Director of Gravitas Housing Ltd informed the Committee that the private 
market would not have undertaken this scheme as profit margins were so narrow – 
a sub-5% return.  Further clarification was given that the Council had intervened to 
stimulate growth in the Bourne area which brought clear benefits to the area both 
financially and encouraging in-town living.   

4



 

 
Members raised the following points: 

 

• The Committee had recognised that the financial overview was consistent with 
previous updates.  

 

• Would Gravitas Housing Ltd carry on as a company? 
 

• Would Gravitas Housing Ltd have been required to post tax earnings for the year 
end? 

 
Richard Wyles (Director of Gravitas Housing Ltd) confirmed that there may be a 
requirement for the continuation of the company and Members would have the 
opportunity to consider this following the completion of all property sales and a 
project closure report.  
 
ACTION 1 
 
That a further update report from Gravitas Housing Ltd would be provided to 
the Committee at the next meeting. 
 

36. Environment SK Ltd - Appointment of Directors 
 

The Committee received a report of the appointment of Director arrangements for 
Environment SK Ltd and Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd. 
 
Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive, was stepping down as director, following 
resignation to take up a new post and was to leave in March 2022. 
 
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing and Property was also 
stepping down as a director of Environment SK Ltd and Environment SK 
Commercial Services Ltd in order to focus on his Portfolio responsibilities including 
the Housing Revenue Account and General Fund grounds maintenance function. 

 
It was proposed that Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive would be appointed as 
a director of Environment SK Ltd and Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd.   
 
It was also proposed that an interim Non-Executive Director be appointed for up to 
one year.  The appointment would support the review of Environment SK Ltds 
business plan and would inform the future direction of the company. 
 
It was confirmed to the Committee that the recommendation was to approve the 
appointment of Alan Robinson and approve in principle the appointment of an 
interim Non-Executive Director. 

 
The Committee raised the following points during discussion: 
 

5



 

• What was Alan Robinson’s role on the Board and what would he bring to the 
company? 

 

• What was the expected timescale of appointing an interim Non-Executive 
Director? 

 

• Was a conflict of interests considered to play a part in the decision for Councillor 
Reid to step down as a Director? 

 

• A Member raised a concern that the Cabinet Member for Finance may 
experience a similar conflict as he was responsible for Grounds Maintenance 
also. 

 

• Would the new interim Non-Executive Director be a Legal Officer of the company, 
therefore registered at Company House? 
 

The Deputy Leader of the Council confirmed to the Committee that Alan Robinson 
was a very experienced Local Government Officer and was to take on the role of 
HR for the company. 
 
The Chief Executive clarified that the interim Non-Executive Director process was to 
be the same as for when Leisure SK Ltd appointed a similar role – by application 
then selection for interview. 
 
Councillor Reid informed the Committee that he wished to put his position as 
Cabinet Member for Housing and Property first and could no longer carry out both 
roles alongside each other while the Grounds Maintenance Contract was 
undertaken. 
 
The Leader of the Council further clarified that the Council set the budget for 
Grounds Maintenance, not Councillor Adam Stokes as the Cabinet Member for 
Finance. 
 
Richard Wyles, as Director of Gravitas Housing Ltd informed the Committee that the 
interim Non-Executive Director would not be a Legal Officer and would impartially 
advise the Board of the company. 
 
A Member raised a concern that the Monitoring Officer considered no conflict of 
interests were recognised and requested that the legal advice on conflict of interests 
was to be shared with all Committee Members. 
 
ACTION 2 

 
That written confirmation of all current Directors of SK companies be 
circulated to Committee Members. 

 
 
 

6



 

ACTION 3 
 
That the Monitoring Officer share the legal advice on conflict of interests to 
Committee Members. 
 
The recommendations of the report were proposed and seconded, following a vote 
they were AGREED. 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter requested that it be noted that he voted AGAINST 
Recommendation 2. 
 
DECISIONS: 

 
1. That Companies Committee approved the appointment of Alan Robinson as 

director to Environment SK Ltd and Environment SK Commercial Services 
Ltd. 

 
2. That Companies Committee approved the appointment of an interim Non-

Executive Director for up to one year (with one month’s notice) to 
Environment SK Ltd and/or Environment SK Commercial Services Ltd at a 
cost of £12k. 

 
37. Environment SK Ltd - Finance Update 

 
The Committee received a report presented by the Deputy Leader of the Council on 
a financial update for Environment SK Ltd.   
 
The Committee were informed the report set out a proposal to increase the budget 
for Grounds Maintenance for the approaching year due to a significant increase in 
cost pressures and operational challenges expected.   
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property confirmed that these challenges had 
affected the practicalities of delivering the service leading to a perceived drop in 
standard of service.  
 
A Member asked if the Directors of ESK had similar concerns. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive confirmed that there had been problems within 
Environment SK Ltd around the recruitment and retention of staff but the company 
had been keen to address these issues.  It was clarified that the company had a 
positive relationship with the client. 
 
The Director of Commercial and Operational Services added that the company had 
been flexible and adaptable when responding to any issues, especially when 
deploying to waste collection from other areas during the height of the pandemic. 

 
 
 

7



 

Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
Members considered excluding the press and public, following a vote it was 
agreed unanimously. 
 
DECISION 
That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that if 
they were to be present, exempt information could be disclosed to them 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 
(The Committee moved back into public session at 15:20) 
 
Members were offered an opportunity to arrange a visit to Environment SK Ltd. 
 
A Member asked if other options around the scope of work for the company had 
been fully considered. 
 
The Director for Commercial and Operational Services informed that a review of the 
grounds maintenance specification was being undertaken.  There was a complex 
specification in place and it was only right that it had been fully reviewed and 
updated to seek further improvement and value in the work undertaken. 

 
A Member asked if the company was still advertising for additional work. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive confirmed that the company was consulting like-
minded organisations such as Parish Councils. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Companies Committee noted the 2020/21 final accounts for 
EnvironmentSK Ltd. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Companies Committee is asked to recommend to Cabinet that the budget 
proposals for 2022/23 includes an additional £160,000 to the contract fee in 
respect of the Council’s grounds maintenance service.  
 
The recommendation of the report was proposed but not seconded. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council expressed his disappointment. 
 
The Chief Executive informed the Committee that if the recommendation was not 
approved, the company would struggle to bring forward the workforce to deliver the 
specification that was currently in place.  It was further confirmed that Environment SK 
Ltd would struggle to meet rising fuel costs for transport requirements.  

8



 

 
Upon further consideration, the recommendation of the report was proposed and 
seconded, following a vote it was NOT AGREED. 
 

38. Future Ways of Working for InvestSK Ltd 
 
Members were presented with a report that presented options and 
recommendations relating to efficiencies and financial considerations of insourcing 
InvestSK Ltd. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing explained that 
InvestSK Ltd was established four years ago.  However, since the introduction of 
the Corporate Plan of 2020 and accounting for the Pandemic, the business model 
had changed. 
 
The report illustrated the advantages and disadvantages of the considerations and 
the review concluded that the current business model was not sustainable and had 
failed to make the best use of the skills sets within the business staffing structure.  
Three potential options were detailed within the report. 

 
During debate, Members raised the following points: 
 

• Had staff been consulted on the potential impact to them? 
 

• What had been the added value of setting up InvestSK Ltd rather than keeping 
the services in-house? 

 

• Who is the Cabinet Member responsible for Economic Development? 
 

• The report noted some vacancies.  Are there any areas of service that aren’t 
being provided? 

 
The Director of Growth and Culture confirmed that the staff had been consulted on 
the potential impact of insourcing InvestSK Limited. 
 
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Kelham Cooke confirmed that he was the 
Cabinet Member responsible for the Economic Development Service and that 
InvestSK Ltd had created a successful economic development team, delivering over 
£50 million to local businesses.  He added that many business events had taken 
place, increasing positive engagement with businesses within the local area.  It was 
explained that lessons had been learnt with economic development being a higher 
priority and the Council sought to build a team with an excellent skills-set to take the 
service forward. 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 

Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
Members considered excluding the press and public, following a vote it was 
agreed unanimously. 
 
DECISION 
 
That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that if 
they were to be present, exempt information could be disclosed to them 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 
(The Committee moved back into public session at 16:14) 

 
A Member raised concern that a debate was required on how SK companies’ 
money was spent.  It was noted that accounts were available on the Company 
House website and closing accounts would be brought before the Companies 
Committee once they were available. 
 
The recommendations of the report were proposed and seconded, following a vote 
they were AGREED. 
 
DECISIONS: 

 

1. That InvestSK Limited as a company is dissolved and the activity is 
transferred to the Council’s Growth and Culture Directorate for 
implementation at the earliest opportunity. 

2. That the successful InvestSK brand is retained. 

3. That the annual funding allocated to InvestSK Ltd is included in the 
Council’s Growth and Culture Directorate, and the remaining InvestSK Ltd 
financial reserve, is utilised to fund the additional pension costs that will be 
incurred by the Council. 

4. That a communication plan for both external and internal announcements 
is developed by the outgoing InvestSK Limited Board of Directors. 

 
39. LeisureSK Ltd Budgetary Outlook  2022/23 
 

The Chairman confirmed to the Committee that the LeisureSK Business Plan was 
highly complex and detailed and was therefore to be heard at the next Companies 
Committee meeting in April.  The budgetary element only was to be heard today. 
 
This report, presented by Councillor Barry Dobson, provided an update on the 
financial performance of LeisureSK Ltd for 2021/22 following one year of trading, 
extended to 15 months to place it in line with the Council’s annual budgeting 
process. 

 

10



 

Councillor Dobson informed the Committee that trading conditions had been 
challenging due to extended lockdown periods during the pandemic and the 
restrictions on activities.  It was explained that LeisureSK Ltd had to adapt to the 
change in behaviour patterns of its customers. 
 
A Member queried why the recommendations had been brought before the 
Companies Committee when the item had been heard previously at the Joint 
Scrutiny meeting. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance confirmed that proposals were heard at the Joint 
Scrutiny meeting but no decisions were made at that point. 
 
The recommendations of the report were proposed and seconded, following a vote 
they were AGREED. 

 
DECISIONS: 

 
1. That Companies Committee noted the budgetary outlook for LeisureSK Ltd 

for the current financial year. 

2. That Companies Committee supported the funding proposals for 2022/23. 

3. That Companies Committee agreed to be more detailed analysis of the 
Business Plan for 2022/23 at the next meeting of Companies Committee 
scheduled for 26 April 2022. 

 
40. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 

 
On reviewing the Companies Committee work programme, the following enquiry 
was made: 
 
A Member asked for clarification on when InvestSK Ltd’s financial accounts would 
be provided to members for consideration. 
 
The Committee was informed that the accounts would be brought to the next 
meeting after full completion. 
 

41. Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 
There were no other items of business. 
 

42. Close of Meeting 
 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 16:26. 
 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 25 January 2022 meeting of the Companies Committee. 
 

min 
no 

Agenda item Action(s) Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

35 Gravitas 
Housing Ltd - 
Update 

1. Update to be provided to 
Companies Committee 
Members 

Democratic 
Services Officer 

 Added to Work Programme COMPLETE 

36  
EnvironmentSK 
Ltd – 
Appointment of 
Directors 

2. Written confirmation of all 
Directors of SK Companies 
to be circulated to 
Companies Committee 
Members 

Graham Watts 
(Head of 
Democratic 
Services) 

To be distributed prior to next meeting 
 

26/04/2022 
 

36 Environment 
SK Ltd -  
Appointment of 
Directors 

3. Legal Advice on potential 
conflict of interests of Cabinet 
Members/Directors of SK 
Companies to be shared. 

Alan Robinson 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 

To be distributed prior to next meeting  
 
Email circulated to Committee 09.02.22 

COMPLETE 

 13

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Companies Committee 
26 April 2022 

Report of: Councillor Nick Robins 

  Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy 

           

 

East Midlands Building Consultancy 2021/22 Update 

This report provides an overview of the performance of the East Midlands Building Consultancy 
(EMBC) partnership during 2021/22. 
 

Appendix 1 of this report is exempt under paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it contains information relating to the financial 

or business affairs of an individual or organisation 

Report Author 

Anne-Marie Coulthard, Assistant Director of Operations and Public Protection    

 
 01476 406319 

  a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Delivery of Growth of our 
Economy 

Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Emma Whittaker, Assistant Director of Planning  7 April 2022 

Approved by: Nicola McCoy-Brown, Director of Growth and Culture 8 April 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning 
and Planning Policy 

11 April 2022 

 

Recommendations to the decision makers 

1. Notes the performance of the East Midlands Building Consultancy over the last 12 
months and makes any recommendations to support the ongoing success of the 
partnership.  

2. Agrees to receive an updated Business Plan in six months;  

3. Agrees to receive a report every six months on the performance of the EMBC 
Partnership. 

15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Corporate Plan (2020-2023) acknowledges how South Kesteven District Council 

(SKDC) works hand-in-hand with other public sector partners across Lincolnshire and the 

wider region so that individually and collectively we deliver for our residents and businesses. 

Working in partnership with others is a journey SKDC is on. To realise our ambition for South 

Kesteven, as we put in place the foundations to help move us towards excellence, we 

continue to embed and strengthen our approach to partnership working 

1.2 The East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) is a partnership between SKDC, 

Rushcliffe Borough Council and Newark and Sherwood District Council. The original 

partnership objectives were to combine resources to improve resilience, depth of expertise, 

staff retention and to improve service performance in this highly regulated area of work.  

Companies Committee last received an update report on EMBC on 23 February 2021. 

1.3 The partnership is based on a shared service agreement, with SKDC delivering the EMBC 

service on behalf of each partner. Each council shares any financial surplus or deficit 

equally, operating financially under one single trading account. A Partnership Board 

comprising of senior officers from each partner authority has primary responsibility for 

overseeing the operational management and delivery of the joint building control 

partnership. 

1.4 Building Control is a statutory service that aims to ensure the safety of buildings and the 

people who use them. Services carried out within this function are categorised as either “fee 

earning” or “non-fee earning”. The fee earning aspect predominantly relates to charges 

made for the appraisal of applications and site inspections of schemes submitted under the 

Building Regulations.  Non-fee earning work relates to services which the local authority is 

statutorily obliged to provide, such as maintaining registers of all building control approvals 

awarded in its area (whether issued by itself or by Approved Inspectors), providing general 

advice to the public and undertaking work associated with dangerous structures.      

1.5 The split between fee earning and non-fee earning activity is 74/26 and is typical of a local 

authority building control service.  The non-fee earning work is a cost that must be borne by 

the Council and is charged to the general fund. The Council is required to have regard to 

the overriding objective of ensuring that, as far as possible, charges are set at a level which 

equate to the cost of providing the service. This means that the Council is not permitted to 

make a profit from the charges and cannot subsidise the statutory services from fee income.  

A list of fee earning and non-fee earning activities are set out in Appendix 1.   

Performance  

1.6 Table 1 provides the provisional outturn summary for EMBC for 2021/22 (subject to final 

year-end adjustments). The partnership has made a provisional trading account surplus of 

£55,328 on the fee earning work which is split equally between the three partners. However, 

the non-fee earning work results in a general fund charge of £73,440 to each of the 3 

partners.    

Table 1. Fee Earning and Non-Fee Earning (Provisional) Outturn 2021/22 

  Provisional Outturn Budget 

2021/22 
 Fee 

Earning  
 Non-Fee 
Earning   Total  

 Fee 
Earning  

 Non-Fee 
Earning   Total  

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Total Income 689,528  23,150  712,678  650,000  21,500  671,500  

Total Expenditure 634,200  243,471  877,671  716,373  265,077  981,450  

              

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year 55,328  (220,321) (164,993) (66,373) (243,577) (309,950) 16



 
 

 

1.7 EMBC operates in a competitive market against “Approved Inspectors” who can also carry 

out fee earning building regulation work.  There is relatively strong competition from 

Approved Inspectors in the EMBC area, however, EMBC maintained an average market 

share of 49% in 2021/22 (the same as the previous 2 years).   

1.8 The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in an initial slowing down of the construction 

market and associated building control applications, with some EMBC staff being furloughed 

for a short period under the Job retention Scheme in 2020.  During 2021/22, applications to 

EMBC have increased on the previous two years as demonstrated in table 2 and figure 1 

below.  

 

Table 2. Yearly Comparison of EMBC Applications Received  

  April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March TOTAL  

2019/20 203 155 172 218 154 153 153 133 68 158 159 171 1897 

2020/21 83 95 161 180 146 200 187 262 131 181 181 258 2065 

2021/22 206 258 199 207 150 182 169 141 88 205 160 173 2138 

 

 

Graph 1. Comparison of Application Volumes Received Over the Past 3 Years  

1.9 Figure 2 and table 3 provide details of fee earning income against budget forecast compared 

to the previous years.  This demonstrates a year on year increase in income over the last 3 

years, which is linked to the increase in applications.   

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

N
u

m
b

er

Month

EMBC Applications Recevied

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

17



 
 

 

Figure 2. Monthly Income Comparison Over the Past 3 Years   

 

Table 3.  Income Against Budget Over the Past 3 Years.  

 Total Income Budget 

2019/20  £  642,969   £  614,900  

2020/21  £  658,512   £  657,900 

2021/22  £  689,528   £  650,000  

 

1.10 The overall position for EMBC is positive with a trading account surplus being taken into 

2022/23.  SKDC entered the partnership in 2014 with a trading account deficit of £104,423.  

This has been reduced over time and stands at a provisional surplus of £76,411. Surpluses 

are split equally and detailed on each partner councils own accounts, however, they are 

retained as part of the EMBC trading account and allow for future investment in the service 

and a financial buffer to for when any trading difficulties or service pressures arise.  

1.11 Further provisional financial information for 2021/22 is contained in Appendix 2 (exempt 

from publication).  The approved year end accounts will be reflected in the Council’s final 

accounts.  A financial statement will also be published on the Council’s website in 

accordance with the Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 2010. 

2 Available Options Considered 

2.1 The report is provided for information and presents an opportunity for the committee to make 

comments and recommendations which may support the ongoing success of the 

partnership.  

3 Preferred Option 

3.1 In noting the progress to date, Committee agrees to receive a revised Business Plan and 

further performance progress reports as outlined in the recommendation.   EMBC is 

currently recruiting a new Manager and the Business Plan will be reviewed once they are in 

post.  

4 Reasons for the Recommendations 

4.1 This report provides an update on the performance of EMBC over the last financial year.  

 £-

 £10,000.00

 £20,000.00

 £30,000.00

 £40,000.00

 £50,000.00

 £60,000.00

 £70,000.00

 £80,000.00

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

In
co

m
e

Month

Fee Earning Income Summary by Month

2019/2020

2020/2021

2021/2022

18



 
 

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

5.1 Any recommendations will be presented to the EMBC Partnership Board for consideration.   

6 Financial Implications  

6.1 The financial information contained in this report is based on the provisional financial 

position for 2021/22, the outturn position will be included in the Statement of Accounts.  The 

accounting treatment of recording both fee earning and non-fee earning activity is 

undertaken in accordance with the necessary legislative accounting requirements. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of 

Finance 

7 Legal and Governance Implications  

7.1 The partnership is governed by a shared service agreement which authorises South 

Kesteven District Council to exercise the functions of the shared service on behalf of the 

partners. The agreement automatically renews on an annual basis, with delivery of the 

shared service supported by the Partnership Board made up of senior managers from each 

partner authority.    

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

8.1 This report is for information only, no specific equality and safeguarding implications arise 

as a result of this report. Equalities and Safeguarding policies for the EMBC are a matter for 

the Board to consider.  In particular new Building Regulations will come into force in June 

which will require various shifts in the requirements in order to tackle Climate Change.  

9 Risk and Mitigation 

9.1 Any specific risks have been considered within the report.  

10 Community Safety Implications  

10.1 No community safety implications have been identified.  

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

11.1 This report is principally for information only and has no impact on the Council’s declaration. 

However, elements of the Building Control Regulations require higher energy efficiency 

standards to be applied to new and altered properties which will contribute to reducing 

energy use.  

12 Other Implications (where significant)  

12.1 No other significant implications have been identified.  

13 Background Papers 

13.1 Report to Companies Committee, 23 February 2021  

14 Appendices 

14.1 Appendix 1 – Description of Fee earning and non-fee earning actitivies 

14.2 Appendix 2 – Provision financial outturn for 2021/22 (exempt from publication). 

19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=669&MId=4023&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Building Control Functions 

The functions undertaken by Building Control are split into fee earning and non-fee 

earning activities.  Fee earning activities account for approximately 74% of the 

workload with the remaining 26% comprising of non-fee earning work.    

 

Fee earning functions are set out by legislation in The Building (Local Authority 

Charges) Regulations 2010.  The charges relate only to the building regulations plan 

examination and site inspection function, including consideration of any enforcement 

action but not he service of notices under the provisions of the Building Act 1984. 

 

Fee Earning service 

These functions are those elements of the service for which we can charge a fee and 

comprise of the following: 

1. The passing or rejection of plans of proposed work deposited in accordance with 

Section 16 of the Building Act 1984.  

2. Site inspections in connection with plans which have been deposited.  

3. Site inspections in connection with work for which a Building Notice has been 

given to the Local Authority.  

4. Consideration of plans of work reverting to Local Authority control from an 

Approved Inspector and the inspection and rectification, if required, of that work.  

5. Applications for regularisation certificates for work carried out without the benefit 

of approval. 

 

Non-Fee Earning Work 

This activities can be split into Statutory and critical Building Control functions 

required to provide an efficient rounded service.   These are: 

• Dealing with Dangerous Structures  

• Building Control Enforcement  

• Demolitions 

• Registering Approved Inspector’s Initial Notices and Competent Person Scheme 

works 

• Processing of disabled person’s applications 

• Providing advice to other Council services 

• Safety advisory group/safety at sports grounds 

• General pre-application and building regulations advice.  

• Land Charge Search Enquiries  

 

21

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

23

Appendix 2
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Companies Committee 
26 April 2022 

Report of: Gravitas Housing Ltd  

   

         
  

 

Gravitas Housing Limited 
This report provides an update with respect to the Wherry’s Lane Bourne development project.   
 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Director Gravitas Housing Ltd 

 
01476 406210 

 r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Well Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director Gravitas Housing Ltd 12 April 2022  

Signed off by: Robert Reid, Director Gravitas Housing Ltd 12 April 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

 

1. Companies Committee is asked to note the update on the Wherry’s Lane Bourne 
Development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

1. Background to the Report 

1.1 Members are reminded that Gravitas Housing Limited is a wholly Council owned company 

limited by shares that was incorporated on 30 January 2017 in order to deliver quality new 

housing in the District.  To date one scheme at Wherry’s Lane Bourne has been approved 

by the shareholders (the Council) and financing for this scheme was approved by Council 

on 2 March 2017.  The Business Plan that set out the delivery plan for the Wherry’s Lane 

development and covered the period 2017 – 2021 was approved by the Shareholder 

Committee on 9 January 2017.   

Current Update 

1.2 In January 2020 Gravitas Housing Ltd completed a 25-unit development in Bourne. The 

development provides five town houses and twenty apartments across 2 blocks. The 

marketing of the available units is with specialist estate agents who are working 

exclusively with Gravitas Housing to sell the remaining units.   

1.3 The affordable housing provision has been met with off-site commuted sums and these 

are being delivered as part of the HRA development new build programme. There are also 

4 units at the development that are subject to discounted market sales (i.e. 80% of market 

price) to fulfil the s106 requirements under the Government’s Help to Buy initiative.   

1.4 At the time of compiling the report the following position can be confirmed: 

 Apartments Townhouses 

Originally available 20 5 

Sold 17 0 

Reserved 3 5 

Remaining 0 0 

 

1.5 Therefore it can be see that all properties have either been sold or are in the process of 

being sold and there are no properties now available for sale.  It is anticipated that all sale 

receipts will be received by no later than mid May 2022.  An updated projected profit and 

loss account is shown as an exempt item at Appendix A. The longer (than anticipated) 

sale period has had an adverse financial impact on the overall project as ongoing holding 

costs have been incurred.  However the marketing campaign was severely affected by the 

national lockdown that was introduced shortly after the units became available for sale.   

1.6 As stated above a significant 106 payment has been generated from the project and this 

sum has contributed up to 60% funding towards some much needed social housing in the 

vicinity of the Wherry’s Lane development and photographs of the new development are 

shown at Appendix B.  The development consists of 3 bungalows and 4 flats.  This is a 

positive outcome that is directly attributable to the Wherry’s Lane development.   

1.7 The Committee has requested a financial overview of the positive outcomes of the 

Wherry’s Lane development and these are presented below: 

Heading Amount (£) Details 

S106 agreement 
payment 

504,000 Sum payment to be used towards 
funding of affordable housing in the 
vicinity  

26



 
 

Interest charged by 
Council on loan 

174,000 Interest rate on commercial loan 
between Council and Gravitas 

Recharge of officer 
time to Gravitas 

107,000 Gravitas reimbursement to Council 
for officer time spent on the project  

Council Tax Income 
since 2020/21 

6,000 Income received to Council 
(representing 9% of the Council tax 
bill)  

New Homes Bonus 
income  

188,000 Income to Council following creation 
of 25 new homes 

Total 979,000 Council Equity Share £1,120,000  

 

1.8 A final profit and loss account and a closure report on the project will be presented to 

Companies Committee following completion of all sales and payment of any residual costs 

relating to the scheme.  This will be presented to Companies Committee at a future 

meeting. 

2. Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 None. 

3. Available Options Considered 

3.1  These are set out in the report. 

4. Preferred Option 

4.1 This is set out in the report. 

5. Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The current Business Plan is still valid as it focuses on the delivery of the Wherry’s Lane 

project.  This report sets out the progress being made.   

6. Appendices 

6.1 Appendix A – Projected Profit and Loss for Wherry’s Lane development  

6.2 Appendix B – Photographs of Meadow Close Bourne Development  

 

 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

 

 

 

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

29

Appendix A
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

31

Appendix B



 

 

32



 

 

33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Companies Committee 
26 April 2022 

Report of: Councillor Barry Dobson 

  Leisure Portfolio Holder 

         
  

 

LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan 2022/23 

This report provides an update on the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd to cover the period April 
2022 to March 2023. 

 

Report Author 

Karen Whitfield (Assistant Director – Culture and Leisure) 

 
 01476 406080 

  Karen.whitfield@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Healthy and Strong 
Communities 

Administrative Two or more Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Susie McCahon, Leisure and Corporate Operations - 
Team Leader 

7 April 2022 

Approved by: Nicola McCoy-Brown, Director of Growth and Culture 11 April 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Barry Dobson, Cabinet Member for Leisure 13 April 2022 

 

Recommendations to the decision makers 

That Companies Committee: 

1. Approves the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd to cover the period April 2022 to 
March 2023. 

2. Considers the performance of LeisureSK Ltd against the Business Plan and 
identifies any additional considerations to be addressed in future six-monthly 
updates made to it. 

35

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 South Kesteven is a district that has diverse leisure opportunities.  From playing a sport with 

one of our local clubs, to using swings in a play area, or swimming in one of our pools, or 

taking a walk in one of our parks. There is something for everyone, whatever your age or 

ability. As reflected in the Council’s Corporate Plan (2020-2023), maintaining and 

developing these opportunities for the community is important to ensure that South 

Kesteven continues to be the best district in which to live, work and visit. 

1.2 LeisureSK Ltd is a not-for-profit Teckal company, wholly-owned by South Kesteven District 

Council. The company was formed in September 2020 to manage the Council’s leisure 

facilities on the expiry of the leisure contract with the Council’s previous provider.  

1.3 LeisureSK Ltd took over the management of the Council’s leisure centres on 1 January 

2021. The arrangements are covered by a formal leisure contract and leisure specification, 

which set out the level of service required, minimum service standards, and key 

performance indicators. 

1.4 The first year of trading for LeisureSK Ltd was previously extended to cover a fifteen-month 

period, including January 2021 to the end of March 2022. This was to enable the 

assessment of any management fee required for future years to be brought into line with 

the Council’s annual budget setting process. 

1.5 Due to the ongoing impact of COVID-19, trading conditions have remained difficult for 

LeisureSK Ltd during the first year of operation. This has included an extended period of 

national lockdown, and ongoing restrictions to both the facilities, and the numbers of 

participants able to take part in activities.   

1.6 The long-term effects of the pandemic are wide-reaching in terms of customer behaviour.  

Many users, who have traditionally used leisure centres, have switched to informal outdoor 

activities and pursuits, or are accessing fitness content online. Nationally fitness 

memberships are 74% of pre-COVID levels, which is on par with the current performance 

of LeisureSK Ltd. 

1.7 Currently all activities in the leisure facilities remain bookable in advance. This is to ensure 

that footfall and occupancy levels can be effectively monitored to ensure users are kept 

safe, spaces are adequately ventilated, and social distancing requirements are observed. 

1.8 During the financial year 2021/22 some of the deficits in income have been covered by a 

successful application to the National Leisure Recovery Fund, administered by Sport 

England on behalf of the Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS). The Council 

were awarded a total of £327,597 following a successful application. 

1.9 The final years’ accounts and cash balances will be shared with Companies Committee at 

a future meeting following the close down of accounts at the end of financial year 2021/22. 

The trading position has been provided for the period January 2021 to December 2021 in 

Appendix Four – Exempt Information. 

1.10 It is envisaged that the operating position for LeisureSK Ltd will remain challenging during 

2022/23. To ensure that the Council can accurately forecast the company’s performance, 

Sport and Leisure Consultancy (SLC) were commissioned to review the five-year forecast 

for the company. This is also included in Appendix Four – Exempt Information. 

1.11 The five-year forecast takes into consideration the impact of Deepings Leisure Centre 

reopening from January 2025.  This forecast may need to be amended to account for an 

36



 

 
 

alternative reopening date as the refurbishment project progresses and there can be more 

certainty around the length of build contract.  

1.12 The utility market continues to be volatile, and the five-year forecast may also need to be 

further amended to account for increasing utility costs if they continue to rise.  The Council, 

together with the Board of Directors, undertake regular reviews of the business plan 

assumptions and, if necessary, any changes to the forecast will be reported to Companies 

Committee. 

1.13 At the present time, for financial year 2022/23, the forecast has demonstrated that a 

management fee will not be required to support the operation of the company, and that the 

income generated will cover the expenditure requirements. Again, this will be kept under 

review by the Board of Directors as the financial year progresses. 

1.14 The Government has confirmed that the extension of business rates relief to the leisure, 

hospitality and retail sectors will continue for 2022/23.  LeisureSK Ltd will be able to take 

advantage of this relief and will therefore be liable for 50% of the business rates.  For 

2022/23 this amounts to circa £250,000. 

1.15 An assessment of the impact of this liability has been made by the Council’s s151 Officer in 

line with the Business Rates model.  This has demonstrated that for 2022/23, LeisureSK Ltd 

will be required to meet their business rates liability and this financial obligation will be met 

via the Council through financial support to LeisureSK Ltd. Therefore, a payment of 

£250,000 has been included in the Council’s budget for 2022/23 to cover this. 

1.16 The business rate position will be kept under review, and a further assessment made as 

part of the business planning process for 2023/24 to determine whether an application for 

100% discretionary business rate relief should be made. 

1.17 The Business Plan provided at Appendix One has been produced in conjunction with the 

Board of Directors. The LeisureSK Ltd Marketing Plan 2021/22 is also provided at Appendix 

Three. 

1.18 The role of Contract Manager has recently been recruited to, and the successful candidate 

commenced employment on 1 April 2022.  As the strategic operational lead for LeisureSK 

Ltd, the Contract Manager will undertake a review the Business Plan with the Board and if 

any amendments are suggested, these will be brought to a future meeting of Companies 

Committee for assessment and approval. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The original Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd, which covered the period January 2021 to 

March 2022, was considered and approved at a meeting of Companies Committee on the 

23 February 2021.  During the meeting, the Committee agreed to receive updates on the 

performance of LeisureSK Ltd twice yearly. 

2.2 A six-month progress report on the performance of LeisureSK Ltd against the approved 

Business Plan was presented to Companies Committee on 21 September 2021.  

Furthermore, at this meeting, the Members present were able to meet and pose questions 

to David Monkhouse, the Non-Executive Director for LeisureSK Ltd. 

2.3 At a meeting of Companies Committee held on 25 January 2022 Members noted the 

budgetary outcome for LeisureSK Ltd and supported the funding proposal for 2022/23.  

Furthermore, the Committee agreed to undertake a more detailed analysis of the Business 

Plan at this meeting. 

37



 

 
 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 This report contains details on the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd for the period April 2022 

to March 2023.  Also contained is a five-year income and expenditure forecast which reflects 

the current temporary closure of Deepings Leisure Centre, and a proposed re-opening of 

the centre in January 2025 after a full remodel and refurbishment has taken place. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 That Companies Committee endorse the 2022/23 Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd and 

continue to receive six-monthly updates on the performance of the company. 

4.2 Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee will continue to monitor the 

company’s targets against the contract key performance indicators, including details on 

usage and customer satisfaction. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendations 

5.1 The Business Plan produced for 2022/23 provides a robust basis upon which Companies 

Committee can scrutinise the operational and financial performance of LeisureSK Ltd over 

the forthcoming financial year. 

5.2 An update on the financial performance of LeisureSK Ltd for January 2021 to March 2022 

will be presented at a future meeting of Companies Committee once the accounts have 

been audited. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The Board of Directors will be responsible for the operational and financial performance of 

the company. The Business Plan and financial forecast will form the basis of target setting 

and will be used as a benchmark to assess the performance of the company. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 In the current environment, it remains difficult to accurately forecast the trading outlook of 

LeisureSK Ltd.  External consultancy support has been commissioned to assess the 

ongoing impact of COVID-19 against national recovery information. Therefore, the Council 

can be reasonably confident with the overall approach and the assumptions that have been 

made.  However, this will be kept under review throughout 2022/23, especially in relation to 

the impact of rising utility prices. 

7.2 A management fee of £250,000 has been approved as part of the Council’s annual budget 

setting process.  This funding is being made available in order to allow LeisureSK Ltd to 

meet its business rate liability.  The financial position of the company will be kept under 

review to assess whether further adjustments will be necessary during the financial year 

and Members will be updated should this occur.  If there is an operating surplus at the end 

of the first year’s trading, then LeisureSK Ltd will be invited to provide proposals to the 

Council with respect how the monies will be utilised or alternatively the surplus can be used 

to offset any subsequent funding requests the company may require. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

 

 

 

38



 

 
 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Committee will need to satisfy itself that the Business Plan for 2022/23 is suitably robust 

and appropriate. 

8.2 The Council as owner is responsible for overseeing and scrutinising the company’s 

performance through Companies Committee in the same way that it does for the other 

Council-owned companies. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 LeisureSK Ltd has an Equality and Diversity Policy and a Safeguarding Policy both of which 

have been adopted by the Board of Directors. 

9.2 Karen Bradford, as Lead Director for Safeguarding, is responsible for ensuring that the 

Policy is fully implemented, and that the staff employed in the leisure centres, and the 

customers that use them, are kept safe and not disadvantaged in any way. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The Board of Directors maintain a Risk Register which is monitored monthly or when new 

risks emerge.  Details of this have been included in Appendix Two. 

10.2 The Council’s Assistant Director of Culture and Leisure, as the Council’s representative, is 

responsible for ensuring that risks are adequately managed and mitigated by the Board of 

Directors. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None arising from this report. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 Previously the Council’s four leisure centres have accounted for 41.5% of the Council’s 

carbon emissions. The temporary closure of Deepings Leisure Centre will result in a carbon 

saving whilst the centre remains closed. 

12.2 Any future development, or refurbishment options will be undertaken in line with current 

building standards and include opportunities to reduce carbon emissions. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None arising from this report. 

14 Appendices 

14.1 Appendix One - Business Plan for 2022/23 

14.2 Appendix Two – LeisureSK Ltd Risk Register 

14.3 Appendix Three – LeisureSK Ltd Marketing Plan 2021/22 

14.4 EXEMPT Appendix Four – Exempt Information. 

 

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 

 

 
  

Version Purpose Author Date 

1.0 Document Creation K Whitfield January 2022 

2.0 Update K Whitfield March 2022 

LeisureSK Limited 
Business Plan 2022/23 

41



1 
 

Contents 

I. Executive Summary ............................................................................................. 2 

II. Background of Business ....................................................................................... 3 

Company Ownership/Legal Entity Structure ................................................................................... 5 

Business Location / Company Assets ............................................................................................... 7 

Products and Services .................................................................................................................... 11 

Suppliers......................................................................................................................................... 12 

Debt................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Management .................................................................................................................................. 13 

Org Chart ........................................................................................................................................ 14 

Management of Risk ...................................................................................................................... 17 

HR Strategy .................................................................................................................................... 17 

Financial Management .................................................................................................................. 17 

SWOT Analysis ............................................................................................................................... 19 

III. Marketing and Sales .......................................................................................... 20 

Marketing and Sales Support ......................................................................................................... 20 

Pricing ............................................................................................................................................ 20 

Advertising and Promotion ............................................................................................................ 21 

IV. Actuals and Projections ..................................................................................... 21 

First Year of Trading ....................................................................................................................... 21 

5 Year Forecast ............................................................................................................................... 23 

Business Plan Review Strategy ....................................................................................................... 23 

 
 

42



2 
 

Executive Summary 

 LeisureSK Ltd was established in September 2020 to take over the management of the Council’s 

four leisure facilities on the expiry of the previous leisure contract with Leisure in the 

Community Ltd (trading as 1Life) on 1 January 2021. 

LeisureSK Ltd is a Teckal company and is wholly-owned by South Kesteven District Council. Its 

primary role is to provide high quality leisure opportunities across the district to support the 

Council’s strategic aim to the “the best district to work, live and visit”.  

The management of the four leisure centres is covered under a contract arrangement between 

South Kesteven District Council and LeisureSK Ltd.  The contract term is for an initial three years 

from 1 January 2021, with the option to extend for a maximum further two years. 

The success of the company is assessed by several outcomes: 

• Providing increased access for South Kesteven residents of all backgrounds to leisure 

facilities; 

• Reducing social isolation; 

• Improving the emotional and physical health of residents; 

• Providing a sustainable leisure service. 

The move to LeisureSK Ltd has enabled the Council to regain managerial and operational 

control of the leisure facilities which has been invaluable in helping to mitigate the ongoing 

impact of COVID-19 on the leisure service. COVID-19 has had a major impact on the 

participation rates for formal leisure activity nationally, with a major shift in individuals 

exercising in the outdoors or in their own homes. 

The focus for LeisureSK Ltd in 2022/23 will be to continue to rebuild and grow the customer 

base and to ensure that the facilities are as attractive and welcoming as they can be to support 

new membership sales and aid retention. This will be key to the ongoing success of the 

company and to ensure the contract arrangement represents best value for the Council. 

It will be important to continue to identify alternative ways to engage with customers, such as 

through outreach opportunities or via on-line exercise platforms. 

In normal trading times the operation of the leisure facilities through LeisureSK Ltd should be 

cost neutral for the Council. The Board of Directors are committed to ensuring that there are 

robust managerial, operational, and financial procedures in place that support opportunities to 

increase income and control expenditure, and that these opportunities are maximised. 

The Council’s Companies Committee will continue to receive six monthly updates on the 

performance of LeisureSK Ltd, this includes agreeing and monitoring the annual business plan.  

Additionally, the Council’s Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

receive six monthly updates on the company’s performance against the contract key 

performance indicators, including usage and customer satisfaction information. 

43



3 
 

Whist the initial establishment of LeisureSK Ltd was as a response to the COVID-19 pandemic, 

and the impact that this had on the leisure operator market, there are very strong signs that 

the leisure operator market will never recover to previous levels.  Many other Councils are 

currently looking to set up local authority trading companies or are looking to bring their leisure 

services in-house. As such, presently there would be no benefit in the Council looking to 

outsource the service. However, Officers will continue to monitor the situation to assess 

whether the arrangement with LeisureSK Ltd remains best value for the Council. 

Deepings Leisure Centre is currently temporarily closed due to its age and condition and the 

serious health and safety risks this poses.  Customers previously using Deepings Leisure Centre 

have been encouraged to use one of the Council’s three remaining leisure centres within the 

district.  The resulting impact of the closure has been included in the proposed LeisureSK Ltd 

budget for 2022/23. 

In December 2021, the Council approved a full refurbishment and remodelling of the existing 

Deepings Leisure Centre, subject to the Council securing a legal interest in the land and building, 

and undertaking meaningful consultation with the local community. The impact of this has been 

factored into the five-year forecast for LeisureSK Ltd, with the refurbished centre due to open 

from January 2025. 

Following the community consultation, Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee have recommended to Cabinet that an alternative scheme of refurbishment should 

be considered, being Option D.  If approved, and as the project progresses, the five-year plan 

will require amendment. 

 

 

Background of Business 

 

 

The Council’s leisure management contract with LeisureSK Ltd began on 1 January 2021.  

Unfortunately, in line with national lockdown arrangements, the centres were closed and 

unable to trade. 

The lockdown measures continued with the centres remaining closed until March 2021, when 

a gradual reopening process commenced.  At the end of March 2021 some access to the centres 

was permitted for outdoor and club activities, and on 12 April 2021 indoor leisure facilities and 

swimming pools re-opened.  It was necessary for all activities to be booked in advance to ensure 

that footfall and numbers could be monitored to ensure social distancing.  Fitness exercise 

classes re-commenced in May 2021, and in July 2021 all restrictions were finally lifted. 

Whilst the centres remained closed the Directors of LeisureSK Ltd took the necessary steps to 

mitigate the financial impact on the company.  This included: 

• The use of the furlough scheme, with only a small core of operational staff being retained; 

• Hiring out the Table Tennis Centre at Grantham Meres to the CCG, this remains as one of 

the main vaccination centres for Lincolnshire; 

44



4 
 

• A successful application to the National Leisure Recovery Fund in the sum of £320,597; 

• Reassessing the optimal business rate position in light of the budget measures; 

• Receipt of £144,856 through the small business grant scheme which was administered by 

InvestSK.  

Currently there are no restrictions on leisure activity, although the service has suffered in terms 

of reduced footfall and income, some of which has been off-set by the grants awarded. 

The Council’s leisure facilities provide a range of memberships and pay-as-you go opportunities 

for leisure activities, both for individuals and sports clubs and organisations.  The centres are 

an important Council asset in keeping the residents of South Kesteven active and healthy. 

LeisureSK Ltd supports the Council’s Corporate objectives by: 

• Providing high quality leisure facilities across the district; 

• Working effectively with partners in the voluntary, private and public sectors for the benefit 

of local communities; 

• Being an active delivery partner of the Council’s Sports and Physical Activity Strategy, which 

was adopted in December 2021. 

LeisureSK Ltd has set several strategic goals and objectives to underpin the delivery of the 

Council’s objectives as follows: 

• To identify and breakdown barriers to accessing the leisure facilities in South Kesteven; 

• To connect communities, looking at outreach programmes outside of traditional leisure 

facilities; 

• To reduce social isolation and promote independent living in South Kesteven; 

• To improve the physical and mental health of residents through targeted healthy lifestyle 

programmes; 

• To facilitate and support the future of Council owned leisure and cultural facilities in South 

Kesteven. 

The principal features that will contribute to making the company and the leisure facilities 

attractive to customers are: 

 

• Location and accessibility;  

• Universal – the facilities are available to all; 

• Established – the facilities are well known in their localities; 

• Trusted – backed by South Kesteven District Council, there is confidence that the facilities 

will continue to operate; 

• Price – ensuring this is competitive and attractive; 

• Wide range of activities offered; 

• Ensuring an attractive family offer. 

45



5 
 

Nationally the leisure sector has recovered at around 74% when compared to pre-pandemic 

membership levels.  LeisureSK Ltd are currently at 75% of pre-pandemic levels, however this 

does not include the memberships from Deepings Leisure Centre which are currently frozen. 

Most of the activities currently provided remain bookable in advance so that numbers can be 

monitored to ensure social distancing is adhered to, and maximum recommended occupancy 

levels are not exceeded.   

Under the management of the previous contractor, the centres had suffered from negative 

perception, particularly in terms of cleanliness and the maintenance of the facilities.  During 

the first year of operation this has improved significantly.  Further improvements will remain a 

focus for LeisureSK Ltd to continue to improve the service offered, to grow the numbers of 

members and users of the facilities. This will be monitored by financial performance, 

improvement in customer satisfaction levels and customer feedback.   

Most of the staff employed in the operation of the leisure facilities were transferred to 

LeisureSK Ltd from 1Life.  On transfer, each employee received a comprehensive introduction 

to the company and there remains an ongoing training plan in place to ensure that the 

standards which are expected, are consistently applied. 

The transfer of the staff to LeisureSK Ltd has been a particular success with the Council receiving 

a Highly Commended from the Judges in the MJ Workforce Transformation category in 2021. 

A staff satisfaction survey undertaken in June 2021 identified that: 

• 74% of staff had felt supported by the Council in the transition to LeisureSK Ltd; 

• 80% of staff felt valued by LeisureSK Ltd; 

• 73% reported that they were more motivated to provide an excellent service since the 

transfer. 

  

 

Company Ownership/Legal Entity Structure 

 LeisureSK Ltd is a not-for-profit company which is limited by guarantee.  It is a Teckal company, 

wholly-owned by South Kesteven District Council, for the purposes of the management and 

operation of the leisure facilities within the District.   

The company is focused on providing leisure management services to South Kesteven District 

Council. The Teckal status of the company allowed the Council to directly award the 

management of the leisure service to LeisureSK Ltd without going through a competitive 

procurement process.  To maintain the Teckal status, at least 80% of work undertaken by 

LeisureSK Ltd must be on behalf of the Council.  Considering the move by many Councils to 

identify alternative management arrangements on the expiry of their contracts, there may be 

opportunities for LeisureSK Ltd to provide leisure services more widely.  Should opportunities 

46



6 
 

arise, then an assessment will be made on the impact on the company and the Teckal 

exemption.   

As a not-for-profit company, LeisureSK Ltd benefits from a VAT exemption which is applied to 

most of the services the company offers. This includes gym memberships, casual gym use, 

swimming, personal training, hire of sports facilities and, coaching and training sessions.   

For financial year 2022/23 the Council intends to fund the company’s business rate liability via 

a management fee.  Modelling undertaken by the Council’s S151 Officer has demonstrated that 

this would be beneficial considering the continuing business rate relief measures launched by 

the government.  A further assessment will be made as part of the budget setting process for 

2023/24 whether it would be beneficial to apply for 100% business rate relief under the 

Council’s discretionary rate relief policy. 

The Articles of Association list the company’s objects as follows: 

a)         to provide leisure, sports and cultural facilities and services; 

b)      to liaise and co-operate with all interested groups within the community to develop 

 and deliver this service; 

c) to promote and enter into partnerships or arrangements of all kinds to improve or 

 extend the facilities and services offered; 

d) to explore all avenues of funding and finance for such services; 

e) to improve health and wellbeing through a range of outcomes, including reduced 

 obesity, reduced anti-social behaviour and narrowing the health inequality gap; 

f) to increase jobs, strengthening the local economy and enable children, young people 

 and adults to learn and be ready for work; 

g) to carry on any other trade or business which in the opinion of the Directors is in the 

 best interest of the company or the Council; and 

h) without prejudice to any of the objects listed above to carry on any trade or business 

 of a general commercial company. 

Subject to the company objects, the Directors of LeisureSK Ltd are responsible for the 

management of the company’s business.  The Council retains many rights as the owner of the 

company and has the power to request that Directors either take or refrain from any specified 

actions, and to ensure that strategies are aligned with the Council’s corporate objectives.  

The Members Agreement governs the Council’s relationship with LeisureSK Ltd and details the 

reports and information the Council will be entitled to receive.  This also details the process of 

receiving and agreeing the company’s business plan, which will be presented to Companies 

Committee annually for scrutiny, before being agreed. 

  

 

47



7 
 

Business Location / Company Assets 

 

 

 

LeisureSK Ltd is responsible for the operation of the Council’s leisure facilities.  Following the 

temporary closure of Deepings Leisure Centre, the following centres remain operational: 

Grantham Meres Leisure Centre and Football Stadium – Trent Road, Grantham 

 

• The original Table Tennis Centre was built in 1991 

• The leisure centre extension was added 1998 

• This is the largest and newest facility in the Council’s leisure portfolio 

• The facility is owned by SKDC, as is the neighbouring Football Stadium 

• Annual usage in 2019/20 was 663,239  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48



8 
 

 

Bourne Leisure Centre – Queen’s Road, Bourne 

 

• Built in 1988 

• The facility owned by Lincolnshire County Council and leased to Bourne Academy 

• Used by SKDC under a Chance to Share Agreement 

• Bourne Academy have priority of the sports hall daytime only, this is open to the 

community for evenings and weekends 

• The remainder of the leisure centre is fully available for community use 

• Annual usage 2019/20 – 191,884 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49



9 
 

 

Stamford Leisure Pool – Drift Road, Stamford 

 

• Built in 1986 

• The facility is owned by SKDC 

• It is predominantly a leisure pool with small gym facility 

• Annual usage in 2019/20 was 156,246 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



10 
 

 

Deepings Leisure Centre – Park Road, Deeping St. James 

 

• The centre has been closed temporarily due to the age and condition of the building 

• In December 2021 the Council agreed to invest in a full remodel and refurbishment of the 

leisure facility at a cost of £10.7 million 

• Built in 1974, this is the oldest facility in the Council’s leisure portfolio 

• The facility is currently owned by Lincolnshire County Council and jointly used by The 

Anthem Trust 

• Heads of Terms have been agreed which will see the Council secure a lease of the leisure 

centre and ensure significantly increased opportunities for both local and district 

residents to access the facility 

• Annual usage in 2019/20 was 274,961 

 

 

 

 

  

 

51



11 
 

Products and Services 

 The services offered across the company vary in line with the individual facilities and include: 

• Gym, fitness class and swimming memberships 

• Swimming (general swim, swimming lessons, school swimming and pool hire) 

• Other sports facilities hire (one-off and block bookings) 

Secondary income is generated through café and bar (in the case of Grantham Meres), 

through concessions for cafés and vending, and from minor retail (primary swimwear). 

A summary of the facilities currently available at the individual sites is as follows, the 

information for Deepings Leisure Centre is based on the proposals for refurbishment 

agreed by Council in December 2021: 

 

Grantham 
 
  

Bourne 
 
  

 
Stamford 

 
  

Deepings Proposed 
Facility 

Option D  
70 Station Gym 40 Station Gym 15 Station Gym 80 Station Gym 

2 Group Exercise 
Studios 

Group Exercise 
Studio   

2 Group Exercise 
Studios 

6 Court Sports Hall 4 Court Sports Hall   4 Court Sports Hall 

8 Lane Competition 
Pool with moveable 
floor     

6 Lane Competition 
Pool 

Learner Pool     Learner Pool 

Leisure Pool with 
Flume & Toddler 
Splash 

Leisure Pool with 
Flume & Other 
Features 

Leisure Pool with 
Flume & Other 
Features  

Indoor Cycling 
Studio    

Climbing Wall     

Table Tennis Centre      
3G Synthetic Pitch       

Meeting Rooms       

Cafe  Small cafe    Small cafe 

Agreed parameters for pricing are agreed with the Council as part of the annual budget process.  
It is the role of the Board to ensure that the pricing strategy adopted aims to balance income 
generation with ensuring that the facilities are accessible to all residents, the focus being on 
increasing the use and reach of the centres. 

 

 

52



12 
 

Suppliers 

 There are several key products and services which are required by LeisureSK Ltd for the smooth 

operation of the facilities.  These fall primarily into the following categories: 

• Utilities – electricity, gas and water; 

• ICT – phones and software are required to communicate with customers, manage 

bookings, and to collect usage and financial performance information; 

• Financial systems – systems for the taking and recording of payments, memberships via 

direct debits, and to provide financial reports; 

• Stock – maintenance and retail items, such as cleaning equipment, pool chemicals and 

food and drinks for café and bar. 

As part of the end of contract arrangements with 1Life, the Council received a list of established 

contracts and suppliers.  Where appropriate, contracts were novated to LeisureSK Ltd, or new 

arrangements were entered into.  Where this was not appropriate, or where there have been 

opportunities for efficiencies, then alternative suppliers have been secured.  For example, 

LeisureSK Ltd commissioned EnvironmentSK to collect waste from the four leisure facilities, 

rather than the previous supplier used by 1Life.   

All suppliers are commissioned in line with the company’s agreed Financial Procedures and are   

paid via a standard invoice process or direct debit. 

 

 
 

Debt 

 LeisureSK Ltd is a wholly owned company owned by South Kesteven District Council. 

As a not-for-profit company, LeisureSK Ltd will generally be expected to break even and broadly 

maintain this position throughout the company’s life.  As any management fee provided by the 

Council will cover any operational shortfall it is not envisaged that the company will need to 

borrow money in order to operate. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



13 
 

Management 

 
The relationship between the Board of Directors, the Council’s Assistant Director – Culture and 

Leisure and the Leisure Contract Manager is demonstrated below: 

 

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the overall strategy of the business and 

agreeing budgets, monitoring and improving financial and performance targets, and setting 

policy and procedures.   

The Assistant Director – Culture and Leisure performs the role of the Owners Representative 

and is the key ongoing contact point between the company and the Council.  As Owners 

Representative the Assistant Director – Culture and Leisure looks after the interests of the 

Council ensuring that any decisions made are in line with the Members Agreement which has 

been adopted.   

The Council’s Leisure Team, headed up by the Assistant Director – Culture and Leisure, are 

responsible for implementing a robust regime of contract monitoring with the aim of driving 

service improvements.  They are also responsible for collating evidence in relation to 

achievement of the key performance indicators, and challenge performance and agree 

improvements where necessary.  This information forms part of a balanced scorecard which is 

reported to, and assessed by the Board of Directors, monthly. 

The Leisure Contract Manager is the key lead for managing the operational and financial 

performance of the company and reports directly into the Board.  They are the key conduit for 

two-way communication between the Board and the onsite teams, and are responsible for 

carrying out and achieving the strategic and financial targets set by the Board of Directors.   

Contract performance is overseen on a monthly basis by the Board and any areas for 

improvement agreed are also monitored by the Council’s Leisure Team. 

The Leisure Contract Manager is supported by the onsite operational teams with each site being 

headed up by a General Manager.  A performance culture has been embedded throughput the 

organisation to ensure that the Council achieves the operational standards it has set out in the 

leisure services specification which forms part of the contract. 

As part of the work to integrate the onsite teams into the vision and ethos for LeisureSK Ltd the 

staff, together with the Board, co-created the Mission, Vision and Values for LeisureSK Ltd.  

LeisureSK Ltd 
Board of Directors

Leisure Contract 
Manager

Assistant Director 
- Culture and 

Leisure

54



14 
 

These underpin the business of the company and are aligned to the corporate aims of the 

Council: 

Mission 
 
“To provide a physical activity and wellness network for our community, promoting healthy 
lifestyles, supporting wellbeing and inspiring everyone to live a more active life.” 
 

Vision  

 

“Incorporating physical activity into everyday life, reaching more people, and making a difference to 

our community.” 

 

Values 

 

LeisureSK: 

Encourages healthy lifestyles 

Inspires physical activity 

Supports wellbeing 

Unites communities 

Respects differences 

Empowers people 

Safe and professional 

Knowledgeable 

 

Org Chart 

 The Organigram below details the relationship between the Council, the Board of Directors, 

Council Officers, and onsite teams 

 

55



15 
 

 

The Directors of LeisureSK Ltd have been appointed by Council and are: 

• Cllr Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council; 

• Cllr Barry Dobson, the Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Chairman of LeisureSK Ltd; 

• Cllr Adam Stokes, Deputy Leader of the Council, Cabinet Member for Finance and 

Resources and Deputy Chairman of LeisureSK Ltd; 

• Cllr Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy; 

• Karen Bradford, Chief Executive of South Kesteven District Council; 

• Nicola McCoy-Brown, Director of Growth and Culture; 

• David Monkhouse, Non-Executive Director; 

The Council were successful in recruiting a highly qualified and experienced Non-Executive 

Director who joined the Board in January 2021, and attended a meeting of Companies 

Committee on the 21 September 2021. 

David Monkhouse has over 20 years senior experience in leisure operations, is currently the 

Director of a company providing the National Benchmarking Service on behalf of Sports England 

and is a Trustee Member of the Chartered Institute for the Management of Sport and Physical 

Activity (CIMSPA). 

On Site Teams 

The current operational management structure for LeisureSK Ltd is shown below: 

 

 

56



16 
 

 

 

Some changes have been made to the operational structure since the company was formed in 

January 2021, some of which are in response to the temporary closure of Deepings Leisure 

Centre.  

The Contract Manager, who was previously employed by 1Life, was originally transferred to 

LeisureSK Ltd to head up the strategic and operational functions of the company.  The Contract 

Manager left at the end of October 2021 to take up alternative employment.  Since that time 

the onsite teams have been supported by David Monkhouse, Non-Executive Director for three 

days per month.  This has ensured that a senior level of operational support and knowledge is 

available for the on site teams. 

Following a successful recruitment process a Contract Manager has now been appointed and 

commenced employment with LeisureSK Ltd on 1 April 2022. 

A Contract Fitness Manager was appointed and commenced employment on the 1st March 

2021.  This is a dedicated role with the responsibility to drive membership sales across the 

leisure facilities, both attracting and retaining members.  This will be particularly important 

throughout 2022/23 if the company is to make headway in regaining the pre-pandemic levels 

of memberships.  To ensure success, new and lapsed members will be attracted through a range 

of sales and marketing promotions.  The role is incentivised through a combination of basic 

salary and commission. 

As part of the TUPE arrangements the General Manager for Deepings Leisure Centre was 

transferred to LeisureSK Ltd.  However, this was not the employee’s substantive post and they 

had previously been employed as the Contract Health and Wellbeing Manager.  With the 

closure of Deepings Leisure Centre, and the formation of the Council’s Sport and Physical 

Activity Strategy, this role has been reintroduced.  The key long-term responsibilities of this role 

include: 

• Developing a health & wellbeing plan that provides for local need, especially those 

from under-represented groups; 

• Promoting LeisureSK Ltd activities so that they attract the widest possible range of 

users, making the facilities a key health and wellbeing hub for the community; 

• Overseeing a range of initiatives that benefit the wider community outside of the 

traditional leisure centre setting, using community halls, schools, parks and open 

spaces; 

• Developing a specific range of activities, both in centre and community based, that 

encourage children to participate in physical activity; 

• To work with local health partners and the NHS to develop a comprehensive exercise 

on referral offering across LeisureSK Ltd; 

• Securing funding and sponsorship for LeisureSK Ltd; 

• Championing LeisureSK Ltd’s employee wellbeing initiatives; 

• Leading on the LeisureSK Ltd learning and development project;  

• Being LeisureSK Ltd’s GDPR/data protection champion. 

 

57



17 
 

 

Management of Risk 

 The Board of Directors maintain a Risk Register for LeisureSK Ltd which is kept under constant 

review at Board meetings.  New and emerging risks are assessed and added to the Register. 

A copy of the current Risk Register is attached at Appendix Two.  

 

HR Strategy  

 LeisureSK Ltd are supported by The HR Branch, who were initially commissioned for a period of 

six months to provide external HR support to aid the transition to the new arrangements and 

the TUPE transfer of staff.  Due to the level and quality of support being provided this 

arrangement has since been extended for a further period of 12 months. 

The HR Branch have been responsible for reviewing and updating the full range of HR policies 

and procedures, have developed the staff handbook, and managed the company induction for 

all employees.  They are also providing on-going HR support including payroll services. 

A key focus for 2022/23 will be assessing and implementing a fair pay structure across LeisureSK 

Ltd.  Under the provisions of TUPE, the existing employees were all transferred over on their 

existing terms and conditions.  However, it is very apparent that there has never been any 

formal pay structure and, as a result, some employees are on different rates of pay when 

undertaking the same duties.  

The impact of national minimum wage increases has also caused some disparity in pay rates, 

especially for those for roles which carry a high degree of responsibility.  The Board are in the 

process of agreeing a formal pay structure, this is essential if the company is to attract and 

maintain high quality staff. 

 

 

Financial Management 

 LeisureSK Ltd is constituted as a not-for-profit company.  The company has been set up to either 

receive a management fee payment for operating the facilities (in the case where there is an 

operational deficit, and whilst COVID-19 continues to have an impact) or will pay a fee to the 

Council if there is an operational surplus. 

The accounting and financial systems which have been put in place are a series of interfaced 

solutions: 

• Gladstone MRM is a cloud-based customer relationship system which is being used for 

bookings and income receipts, this includes the ability to book online and via an App; 

• Fitness and swimming direct debits are processed on behalf of LeisureSK Ltd by 

Transaction Services Group (TSG) and these transactions will interface into the 

Gladstone MRM system; 

58



18 
 

• Café and bar income (cash and card payments) are taken through tills using EPOS Now 

and a daily summary of cash taken will be manually input into the Gladstone MRM 

system; 

• Sage is being used for invoice payments and payroll, and income received will be 

entered into the system, including the income received from Gladstone MRM and TSG; 

• Natwest will be used for business banking services and cash will be reconciled between 

Sage and the bank statements. 

 

Budget management is undertaken at the centre level, with centre managers being set income 

and expenditure targets at the start of each year as part of the business plan.  Budget 

monitoring is carried out monthly, supported by Sage system reports, with managers asked to 

forecast for year end and explain variances from budget and previous forecasts.  s 

The Council’s Finance Team provides ongoing financial support via a Service Level Agreement 

and receives a payment for this service.  The range of services provided includes: 

• Provision of budget monitoring reports and information to enable the Contract Manager 

to monitor all income and expenditure; 

• Processing invoices and making payments to suppliers; 

• Setting up new suppliers on the SAGE system; 

• Providing SAGE training for the onsite teams; 

• Accurate reconciliation of income received to budget; 

• Provision of reports and information to aid budget setting; 

• Undertaking year end procedures and closing down accounts. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



19 
 

SWOT Analysis 

 Strengths 

• Established venues and customer base 

• Retained experienced operational staff 

• Venues located at all population centres 

• Established customer base/database of lapsed members 

• Marketing campaigns developed to attract and retain customers 

• Board complemented by Non-Executive Director with significant leisure experience 

• Strong demand for swimming lessons 

Weaknesses 

• Closure of Deepings Leisure Centre 

• Changes in behaviour to outdoor/on-line fitness activities 

• Repairs backlog and old tired looking facilities 

• National industry recovery levels lower than anticipated 

Opportunities 

• Review business processes once operational 

• Planned renewal of centres should drive increased demand 

• Develop on-line and outreach activity to increase participation 

• Link to SKDC Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 

• Improve facilities in the short-term and improve customer experience/perception 

• Condition surveys are being carried out to develop asset management plans 

Threats 

• Reduced demand due to COVID-19 and people’s changed behaviours 

• Age and condition of facilities is unattractive 

• Competing facilities less expensive and more attractive 

 

60



20 
 

Marketing and Sales 

Marketing and Sales Support 

 Marketing support is provided to LeisureSK Ltd from a local firm called Cock-a-doodle-do 

Communications who have specialist knowledge in running campaigns and managing 

associated activity within the leisure industry.   

Prior to the launch of LeisureSK Ltd a significant amount of work was undertaken by the Council 

to re-brand the facilities and designing the LeisureSK Ltd logo, re-launching social media 

channels, and developing a marketing campaign to support the launch of LeisureSK Ltd.  

Cock-a-doodle-do Communications produce an annual marketing plan, which takes account of 

national events and campaigns, as well as targeted activity on the sites.  The plan is monitored 

and adapted monthly with the Board Member with responsibility for Sales and Marketing, Cllr 

Kelham Cooke.   

The annual marketing plan for 2022/23 is currently in development and Appendix Three details 

a summary of the plan which covers March 2021 to February 2022. 

 

 

Pricing 

 
The Council set the parameters for pricing as part of the fees and charges review undertaken in line 
with the annual budget setting process. 
 
The final pricing structure is agreed by the Board taking into account all relevant information in 
relation to the facilities, activities offered and local competition. 
 
The current Direct Debit Membership Prices for 2022/23 are: 
 

Price Membership 
Minimum 
Term 

Payment 
Method 

Joining 
Fee 

£24.99 Active Grantham 1 month Direct Debit £10 

£18.99 Active Junior Grantham 1 month Direct Debit £5 

£24.99 
Active Concessionary 
Grantham 1 month Direct Debit £10 

£19.99 Swim Only Grantham 1 month Direct Debit £10 

 

£19.99 
Active Bourne, Stamford & 
Deepings 1 month Direct Debit £10 

£15.99 
Active Junior Bourne, 
Stamford & Deepings 1 month Direct Debit £5 

£19.99 
Active Concessionary Bourne, 
Stamford & Deepings 1 month Direct Debit £10 

 

£27.00 Swim School (All Sites) 4 months Direct Debit £10 

 

61



21 
 

Annual Membership Prices: 
 

  Grantham Bourne Stamford 

Active Annual  £249.90 £199.90 £199.90 

Active Annual Jnr  n/a n/a n/a 

Active Annual Concession n/a n/a n/a 

Swim Annual £199.90 n/a n/a 
    

 

 

Advertising and Promotion 

 Historically there has been a reliance on on-line marketing and the use of social media channels 

to promote marketing campaigns to attract new users.  This will continue, and paid for social 

media and google adverts have been added where this has been appropriate. The leisure 

facilities and services offered are also now promoted through Council social media channels 

and through SK Today. 

LeisureSK Ltd has a dedicated website which hosts information on the leisure facilities and 

activities available.  There is also a link to the booking system and the ability for customers to 

join as a member.  This is also complemented by a LeisureSK app which is available on Apple 

and Android devices. 

LeisureSK Ltd took over the management of the previous 1Life Facebook pages and these were 

rebranded as LeisureSK Ltd.  Twitter and Instagram have also now been developed and 

launched as a valuable tool to engage with customers. 

At key times through the year there are campaigns to attract and retain customers, these are 

included on the marketing plan provided at Appendix Three. 

A range of on-site tools has also been developed to collect prospect information, including the 

use of free one day and seven-day passes. 

 

 

Actuals and Projections 

First Year of Trading 

 The first trading period of the company was extended to 15 months to cover the period January 

2021 to March 2022.  This ensured that the year end aligned with that of the Council and to 

allow the Council to budget for any operational deficit or projected surpluses in future years. 

The two major income generating areas across the sites are fitness sales and swimming lessons. 

Fitness: 

Fitness sales and memberships levels for LeisureSK Ltd are currently 75% of pre-pandemic 

levels.  This is on par with the situation nationally. 

62



22 
 

Traditionally across the leisure industry January and February are the months where the highest 

levels of membership sales are achieved.  Due to the national lockdown in place, LeisureSK Ltd 

were unable to capitalise on this key period. 

Furthermore, the lockdown arrangements did generate a high number of membership 

cancellations, although members were given the option to freeze their membership plans.  This 

was exacerbated by LeisureSK Ltd having to contact all members to inform them of the change 

of ownership and how their direct debits would be collected. 

During periods of lockdown in 2021 online classes were launched to provide opportunities for 

members of the leisure centres to exercise at home.  This was also a valuable way of keeping in 

touch with members, this has been identified as a key area of growth for 2022/23 together with 

the provision of healthy lifestyle activities. 

The start of 2022 has been extremely positive in terms of numbers of enquiries and new 

membership sales, and a full assessment of fitness performance will be made following year 

end. 

It will be important to maintain a clear focus on advertising and marketing strategies which are 

aimed at new customer sales and member retention to grow the fitness customer base to back 

up to, and exceeding, pre-pandemic levels. 

 

Swimming: 

During the lockdown LeisureSK Ltd took the opportunity to fully review the swimming lesson 

programme to include Swim England Water Safety awards as part of the scheme.  This has been 

very well received by pupils and parents. 

Swimschool numbers are currently at 67% of pre-pandemic levels.  Although this does not 

appear to be very favourable, there has been a significant growth in these numbers since the 

pools were allowed to open in April 2021.  As a result, 850 pupils have been added to the 

scheme since that time. 

Deepings Leisure Centre previously had approximately 600 pupils registered on the Swimschool 

programme, 400 of these were accommodated across Bourne and Stamford, providing a 

valuable opportunity for the children to continue to learn to swim. 

Demand for the lower learn to swim stages (1 to 5) is exceptionally high and there is currently 

a waiting list of around 350 swimmers.  As restrictions ease, it is anticipated that those on the 

waiting list will successfully be incorporated into lessons.   

The success of this will depend on a recruitment drive for swimming teachers to grow the 

staffing base.  Due to the shortage of teachers available LeisureSK Ltd are putting on a 

Swimming Teacher Academy which commenced in February 2022. 

Recruitment of teachers will also enable one to one swimming lessons to recommence. 

 

 

63



23 
 

5 Year Forecast 

 Exempt Appendix Four details the year to date performance of LeisureSK Ltd against budgets. 

Also provided is a projected 5-year position for LeisureSK Ltd.  This takes into account the current 

temporary closure of Deepings Leisure Centre and the re-opening of the refurbished facility from 

January 2025. 

See attached Appendix Four – Exempt Information. 

 

Business Plan Review Strategy 

 Budget monitoring is carried out monthly and reported to the Board.  The business plan is 

reviewed annually, and by exception more regularly if there is a belief by the Board that this is 

a risk of the company materially diverging from it. 

Key changes in legislation or competition would also necessitate an exceptional review of this 

strategy to ensure it remains relevant. 

 

 
 

64



Risk Matrix

CERTAIN
4

LIKELY
3

POSSIBLE
2

UNLIKELY
1

NEGLIGIBLE MINOR MAJOR CRITICAL
1 2 3 4

Reference Risk Title Risk Category Risk Status Description Likelihood Impact Score Target Closure Risk Strategy Mitigation Risk Mitigation Ownership
Revised 

Likelihood

Revised 

Impact

Revised 

Score
Additional Action Update(s) 

1 Experience and knowledge Board of Directors Open Newly formed Board of 

Directors with varying 

levels of experience of 

operating at Board level.  

This may cause issues with 

sound business decision 

making.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Non-Executive Director appointed with 

specific leisure industry experience. Skills 

audit to be completed to identify any gaps 

and opportunities for training to be 

identified for all Board Directors. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors (All) and 

SKDC Head of Leisure

2 3 6

Ongoing opportunities explored for profressional 

development in these areas.

2 Decision making Board of Directors Open The Board of Directors 

must make decisions that 

are in the best interest of 

the company rather than 

the Council.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Training on the role of a Board Director to 

be provided. All Directors to hold each 

other to account and conflicts of interest 

are noted at each meeting.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors (All) 

1 3 3

3 Scrutiny and transparency of 

decision making

Board of Directors Closed There has been negative 

comments about the 

Council owned companies 

from Members and the 

public.  

2 2 4 Apr-21 Mitigate

Appropriate scrutiny arrangements have 

been put in place through the Council's 

Companies Committee and the Culture 

and Visitor Economy Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee.

SKDC Head of Leisure

1 2 2

Reporting to Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee every 6 months.

4 Small, local based company with 

no 'head office' support

HR/Staffing Open Staff who have TUPE 

transferred have previously 

relied on a head office 

function for support 

including across HR, 

Quality, Health and Safety, 

Safeguarding and 

Communications.  

Therefore there may be a 

gap in knowledge and skills.

3 3 9 Feb-22 Mitigate

Gaps identified and support being 

provided by the Council and external 

consultants. Directors are assuming 

specific responsibilities, i.e. Health and 

Safety and Safeguarding. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors (All)

2 3 6

Additional support around the 1 year establishment due 

to many contracts being for an initial period of 1 year.

5 Coronavirus impact to 

resourcing

HR/Staffing Open The workforce has been 

reduced as a result of 

coronavirus, resulting in a 

significant number of 

vacancies.

2 4 8 Ongoing Mitigate

Early identification and prioritisation of 

roles. Support being provided by The HR 

Branch.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement Lead

2 4 8

6 Resource absence caused by 

illness 

HR/Staffing Open There is a risk that there is 

inadequate staffing levels 

caused by sickness or 

absentees.

2 2 4 Ongoing Mitigate

Adequate staffing levels to cover any 

potential sickness or absence and 

recruitment of casual team members.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement 
2 2 4

7 Skills and experience HR/Staffing Open There is a risk that 

colleagues do not have a 

diverse and broad enough 

skill set and experience to 

deal with a range of 

situations. This could 

impact daily operations and 

customer issue resolution.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Regular training to take place and rigorous 

recruitement process for new employees.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement 

1 3 3

8 Inconsistent pay structure HR/Staffing Open There is no formal pay 

structure in place across 

the company which has led 

to some anomalies.  This 

may make retention and 

recruitment of staff 

difficult.

3 3 9 Ongoing Mitigate

The Board have already approved some 

pay awards and this will be kept under 

review.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement Lead

2 3 6

LeisureSK Ltd Risk Register

4

1

2

3

LI
K

EL
IH

O
O

D

12 16

9 12

IMPACT

8

3 4

64

6

2

8

65

A
ppendix 2



9 Organisational culture HR/Staffing Open The staff have transferred 

into a new company and 

will be expected to adapt to 

new procedures, 

expectations and service 

levels.

2 3 6 Sep-21 Mitigate

A thorough induction process has been 

planned which includes introduction to 

the Board of Directors.  Robust policies 

and procedures have been developed and 

effective line management will be 

required.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement 

1 3 3

10 Establishment of mission, vision 

and values

HR/Staffing Closed There is a risk that staff do 

not adopt mission, vision 

and values of new 

company.
2 3 6 Sep-21 Mitigate

Staff are included in the process of 

establishing LeisureSK Ltd mission, vision 

and values to encourage buy in and 

commitment. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement Lead

1 3 3

Mission, vision and values established by the LeisureSK 

Team and discussed with communications contractor. 

These have been put forward to the board and adopted.

11 Staff retention following transfer HR/Staffing Closed Low morale and change 

over to new company  may 

result in higher staff 

turnover. 2 3 6 Jun-21 Mitigate

The rationale for the change over has 

been communicated to staff.  Positive 

engagement throughout TUPE process.  

The Chairman of the Board of Directors 

has taken responsibility for staff 

engagement.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement Lead

1 3 3

12 Staff retention - ongoing 

reduction in staff morale due to 

limited career progression

HR/Staffing Open Reduction in quality of 

service. Increase in staff 

turnover with loss of skills 

and experience.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Ongoing engagement with staff and 

review of roles to ensure opportunities for 

career progression.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement Lead
1 3 3

13 Staff work load HR/Staffing Open There is a risk that staff will 

suffer with ill health caused 

by workplace stressors if 

the workload is too high or 

systems fail.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Effective support mechanisms in place 

and regular 1:1s; ensure staff holiday is 

taken; wellbeing iniatives developed.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement 

1 3 3

14 Impact of coronavirus and 

periods of closure

Business Plan Open Extended periods of 

lockdown have resulted in 

the company requiring 

additional financial 

support. The recovery and 

associated level of trading 

is uncertain which may 

make the business plan 

unachievable.

2 3 6 Ongoing Accept

The five year financial plan has been 

remodelled to take into account the latest 

lockdown. Income levels have been built 

on industry best practice and take account 

of risks.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - Finance 

Lead

2 3 6

15 Customer retention/ return to 

activity

Business Plan Open Uncertainty over the level 

of users that will fully 

return to leisure activities. 

Customers may still feel 

nervous around 

coronavirus arrangements 

and the necessity to book 

activities.

2 3 6 Mar-22 Accept

External marketing support has been 

secured. The website and social media 

channels are promoting coronavirus 

secure procedures.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors -

Customer Engagement Lead

2 3 6

Currently exploring options to extend marketing support 

beyond March 2022.

16 Loss of large bookings impacting 

on income

Business Plan Open Loss of large bookings at 

the Meres due to 

uncertainty of relaxation of 

restrictions and changes to 

events post coronavirus. Eg 

DRET Summer Cup, Active 

Lincs School Games and 

Inspire + Mini Olympics.

2 3 6 Ongoing Accept

Meres team work with former hirers to 

support plans for large events to continue 

when allowed. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors -

Customer Engagement Lead

2 3 6

There has been some return to large scale events that 

had previously taken place at the Meres, this is 

continuously monitored in line with the latest 

coronavirus guidance to ensure these events are 

delivered safely. 

17 Marketing Business Plan Closed Demand may be reduced 

due to local authority 

facilities not having same 

branding and appeal as 

privately run centres.

2 3 6 Sep-21 Mitigate

New branding approved by the Board of 

Directors. Customer facing areas have 

been redecorated. Staff induction process 

will detail the level of expectation in 

relation to service provision.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors -

Customer Engagement Lead

2 3 6

18 Negative reputation Business Plan Open There have previously been 

concerns over the level of 

cleanliness across the 

centres and how these have 

been managed from both 

the public and Members.

2 2 4 Ongoing Mitigate

Each centre has been deep cleaned and 

this has been promoted through social 

media channels. Facility attendants are 

being recruited and effective line 

management will be required to ensure 

that the team adopt the new standards 

required. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors -Quality 

Lead

2 2 4

A thorough cleaning rota is in place and is continuously 

reviewed to ensure the facilities are maintained to a 

high standard. Contract monitoring visits are conducted 

by the Council's Leisure Team. A monthly report is 

provided to the LeisureSK Ltd Board detailing these.

19 Leisure Improvement 

Programme

Business Plan Open The leisure facilities are old 

and require intervention/ 

refurbishment.  There is a 

risk that levels of usage will 

drop or customers may be 

attracted to newer 

facilities.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

The Council is working on leisure 

improvement/investment plan for the 

leisure facilities, however these are longer 

term projects.

Board of Directors (All)

2 3 6

66



20 Insurance claims Business Plan Open Insurance claims for injury / 

damage to customers or 

their belongings.
2 2 4 Ongoing Mitigate

Effective processes and procedures are in 

place together with appropriate insurance 

policies and levels of cover.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - Health 

and Safety / Finance Lead(s)
2 2 4

21 Failure to comply with GDPR Governance Closed Breaches in compliance 

with relevant legislation.
2 2 4 Apr-21 Mitigate

Appropriate procedures in place for 

members information. Effective controls 

in place to mitigate any GDPR breaches.

Board of Directors (All)

2 2 4

22 Safeguarding processes Governance Closed There is a risk young people 

and vulnerable adults are 

not protected if 

appropriate safeguarding 

policy and procedures are 

not in place in line with 

latest legislation and best 

practice.

2 3 6 Apr-21 Mitigate

Dedicated member of the Board assigned 

safeguarding policy and adherence with 

relevant legislation and practices.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors -

Safeguarding Lead

2 2 4
LeisureSK Ltd / SKDC Leisure Team to look at 

Leisurewatch scheme.

23 Failure of IT systems and 

software 

IT Infrastructure and 

Software

Open Membership and booking 

systems fail due to IT or 

software issues.
3 3 9 Jun-21 Mitigate

IT support provided by SKDC with Service 

Level Agreement being developed. 

Membership systems and software 

outsourced to Gladstone, very 

experienced providers to leisure centres.

Board of Directors (All)

2 3 6

Service Level Agreement in place with IT support. 

Options reviewed with regards to whether there is a 

requirement for out of hours service provision.

24 Failure of mechanical and 

electrical plant

Operational Buildings - 

General

Open There is a risk that plant 

failure leads to centre 

closures.

3 3 9 Ongoing Mitigate

Mechanical and electrical plant is 

maintained by SKDC's Property Team and 

there is a contract in place for proactive 

and reactive repairs with Briggs and 

Forrester who are experienced in the 

leisure centre(s) plant. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - Health 

and Safety Lead   

2 3 6

A full survey of the centres will be conducted in January 

2022.

25 Absestos Operational Buildings - 

General

Open Presence of asbestos in the 

building poses risk to 

health if disrupted.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Each site holds an asbestos register if 

appropriate which is available to staff and 

contractors. Relevant processes and 

procedures in place dealing with risk 

areas. Where possible, the risk is 

removed. SKDC Property Team aware and 

working with other SKDC Officers as 

required.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors -Health 

and Safety Lead

2 3 6

26 Deeping Leisure Centre - Roof Operational Buildings - 

Site Specific

Open Roof over Pool Hall and 

Sports Hall is beyond 

economic repair and there 

are frequent leaks. Facility 

closed in July 2021 due to 

health and safety concerns 

relating to the age of the 

building and the integrity of 

the roof following heavy 

rainfall and resulting in 

widespread water ingress 

throughout the building. 

4 3 12 Ongoing Mitigate

A decision was made at an Extraordinary 

Meeting of Council in December 2022 to 

undergo a full remodel and refurbishment 

of the existing centre. In the mean time, 

the centre remains closed due to the 

health and safety concerns relating to the 

age of the building and integrity of the 

roof.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - Health 

and Safety Lead

4 3 12

27 Deepings Leisure Centre - 

Building Closure

Operational Buildings - 

Site Specific

Open The building was closed in 

July 2021 due to health and 

safety concerns associated 

with the age and condition 

of the building. However, 

there is a risk that 

customers will disengage 

with the company and 

future use of the building 

as a result of finding 

alternative venues. 

4 3 12 Ongoing Mitigate

A decision was made at an Extraordinary 

Meeting of Council in December 2022 to 

undergo a full remodelling and 

refurbishment of the existing centre. In 

the mean time, the centre remains closed 

due to the health and safety concerns 

relating to the age of the building and 

integrity of the roof. The LeisureSK Ltd 

team have successfully transferred a 

number of members to using other 

facilities in the contract, and will continute 

to engage with customers in the area 

through outreach activities. The Council 

are undertaking a consultation with local 

residents regarding the proposed plans for 

remodelling and refurbishment of the 

leisure centre.

SKDC Head of Leisure, LeisureSK Ltd Board 

of Directors (All)
4 3 12

28 Deepings Leisure Centre - 

Astroturf

Operational Buildings - 

Site Specific

Open Astroturf facility is out of 

use, as the surface is 

beyond economic repair. 

Previous users may find 

alternatives venues. 

3 3 9 Ongoing Mitigate

LeisureSK Ltd are facilitating bookings on 

the grass pitches where possible. 

Application in progress for new 3G facility 

as part of the leisure improvement 

programme.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors -

Customer Engagement Lead

3 3 9

67



29 Third party contractors / service 

providers

Operational Open Service providers are not 

managed effectively / 

failure by third party 

contractors to provide 

given service.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Ensure all contractors enter into written 

agreements for service provision. Code of 

conduct for contractors including risk 

assessments, hot work permits, sign in 

and out sheets, information regarding 

building i.e. asbestos register. Service 

providers to share all risk assessments, 

policies and qualifications relating to 

delivery of activity / provision. 

Board of Directors (All)

2 3 6

30 Market competition Business Plan Open There is a risk 

establishment of other 

leisure facilities in the area 

results in reduced market 

share and competition ; rise 

in popularity and 

availability of online 

resources also a risk in 

reducing demand of face to 

face user experience.

2 3 6 Ongoing Accept

Continute to develop initiatives that are in 

line with current demand and in line with 

customer desires e.g. online class 

programme.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - 

Customer Engagement Lead

2 3 6

31 Ineffective marketing strategy Business Plan Open There is a risk that as a new 

company, the new 

marketing strategy fails to 

attract customers and new 

members in the current 

market. 

2 3 6 Mar-22 Mitigate

External marketing support has been 

secured. The website and social media 

channels are being used to promote the 

facilities. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - 

Customer Engagement Lead

2 3 6

Exploring extension to the marketing support that has 

been provided, this contract is up for renewal in March 

2022.

32 Lack of long term vision / 

strategy

Business Plan Open There is a risk that as a new 

business, the long term 

vision / strategy for the 

business may be lacking.
2 3 6 Jan-22 Mitigate

Annual business plan produced and 5 year 

financial targets. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - Finance 

Lead

2 3 6

33 Property, M&E and equipment Operational Closed Following lengthy period of 

closure(s) over the last year 

- equipment may be 

damanged / out of order 

upon return.

2 3 6 Apr-21 Mitigate

Regular building checks took place 

throughout lockdown(s) and before 

reopening. Contractor has completed a 

full audit outlining required repairs.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - Health 

and Safety Lead

1 3 3

34 Inability to invest in new 

systems / projects

Business Plan Open Following coronavirus 

closures and changes to 

operating procedures, 

there is a risk that loss of 

income does not allow for 

investment in new systems 

and projects, resulting in 

the business being unable 

to keep up with the market.

3 3 9 Ongoing Accept

The five year financial plan has been 

remodelled to take into account 

lockdowns. Income levels have been built 

on industry best practice and take account 

of risks. New branding to encourage 

membership retention and attract new 

members to the centres.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors -Finance 

Lead

3 3 9

35 Expected standards HR / Staffing Closed There is a risk following 

prolonged periods of staff 

being off work, that the 

expected standards are not 

met in terms of customer 

experience, cleanliness etc.

2 2 4 Jun-21 Mitigate

Full staff training in place following return 

to work. Standards to be agreed by team 

members and managers. SKDC monitoring 

visits to take place to ensure expectations 

are being met.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement Lead

1 2 2

36 Resource Attrition HR / Staffing Open There is a risk that there 

may be a reduction in the 

company's workforce 

through retirements, 

transfers, resignation etc, 

particularly following long 

periods of closure and any 

potential change of 

circumstances.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Regular discussions to take place between 

team member and manager. Effective 

recruitment strategies in place.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - HR and 

Staff Engagement Lead

1 3 3

37 Ineffective processes Operational Open There is a risk that 

following closures and 

establishment of a new 

business, that new 

processes may be 

ineffective and result in 

long customer wait times 

etc.

3 2 6 Ongoing Mitigate

All new processes trialled. Unavoidable 

aspects e.g. queuing for entry to comply 

with coronavirus legislation to be 

effectively communicated to customers to 

manage expectations.

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors - Quality 

Lead

1 2 2

LeisureSK Ltd continue to adapt to changing 

requirements in line with government guidance. 

38 Deepings Leisure Centre - 

Ownership

Operational Buildings - 

Site Specific

Open There is a risk that as 

Lincolnshire County Council 

are owners of the site, they 

could request the Council 

to vacate the premises at 

any time. 

3 3 9 Jun-22 Mitigate

Deepings Leisure Centre is currently 

closed and the Council are working with 

Lincolnshire County Council and the 

Anthem Trust to secure a long term lease 

of the building, in line with proposals for a 

full remodelling and refurbishment. 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors (All) 3 3 9

68



39 Deepings Leisure Centre - 

Building Closure

Operational Buildings - 

Site Specific

Open There is a risk that the 

proposed remodelling and 

refurbishment to the centre 

is not completed within the 

suggested time frame and 

the building is not ready for 

reopening in January 2024 

as planned.

3 4 12 Jan-24 Mitigate

There are a lot of external factors to do 

with the construction industry that may 

alter the time line.  An appropriate project 

manager and consultants will be procured 

to complete the project on behalf of the 

Council.
SKDC 3 4 12

40 Facility Hire Governance Closed Hirers of the leisure 

facilities are not managed 

effectively.

3 3 9 Ongoing Mitigate

Booking form ensures hirers provide 

information on insurances, risk 

assessments for activity within the facility, 

safeguarding and coaching qualifications 

and policies relating to the activity i.e. 

safeguarding.

LeisureSK Ltd Team & Board of Directors - 

Safeguarding Lead
2 2 4

Document updated February 2022 to ensure all 

information is collated.

41 Income Recovery Financial Closed All income due is not 

collected.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

The centres currently operate a cashless 

system following coronavirus guidance 

and no current demand to reintoduce. 

Minimal amounts of cash stored on site 

for lockers. End of day banking reconcile 

for card payments. A deposit is taken for 

advance bookings; with the full amount 

paid before the event / usage. Financial 

procedure in place and covered in 

inductions. MRM software used for 

bookings and payments, linked to secure 

till. 

LeisureSK Ltd Team & Board of Directors - 

Finance Lead
2 2 4

42 External Funding Financial Open Extending funding 

opportunities are not 

exploited.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Health and Wellbeing Manager exploring 

external funding opportunities. SKDC's 

Leisure Team also actively looking at 

funding opportunities in relation to facility 

improvement and intervention 

programmes, in conjunction with partners 

such as Active Lincolnshire.

LeisureSK Ltd Health and Wellbeing 

Manager, SKDC's Leisure Team & 

LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors 

2 1 2

As part of the recent Quest Audit, information provided 

and work ongoing on external funding opportunities 

available to LeisureSK and action plan for future.

43 Disability Legislation Governance Closed Failure to comply with 

legislation / regulatory 

guidance in relation to 

building compliance.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate 

Regular communication with SKDC's 

Property Team regarding building 

compliance including access to the 

building, facilities and pool hoists and 

other equipment. LeisureSK Ltd hold fire 

risk assessment emergency procedure 

which includes the safe exit of users with 

disabilities. Additional risk assessments 

are completed for specific disability 

groups and users to assist them in event 

of emergency evacuation to take in to 

account invididual needs. 

LeisureSK Ltd Team, SKDC's Property Team 

and LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors 
1 2 2

Regularly updated for new groups and individuals using 

the facilities

44 Child Protection Governance Closed Failure to protect children.

2 4 8 Ongoing Mitigate

Request safeguarding policy from hirers, 

as well as holding LeisureSK Ltd 

safeguarding policy. In addition, lost and 

missing child policy included in the 

emergency plan. 

LeisureSK Ltd Team, LeisureSK Ltd Board 

of Directors - Safeguarding Lead
2 2 4

45 Fraud & Bribery Governance Closed Failure to safeguard against 

bribery.

2 3 6 Ongoing Mitigate

Procurement and tender processes best 

practices followed, including 3 quotes for 

works / service provision. Larger quotes 

received through SKDC's property team 

adhering to SKDC's procurement and 

tender processes. 

LeisureSK Ltd Team, LeisureSK Ltd Board 

of Directors - Finance Lead
1 2 2

LeisureSK Ltd Team to look at establishing anti-fraud 

and bribery policy.

46 Customer Behaviour Operational Closed Inappropriate customer 

behaviour is not managed 

effectively.

3 3 9 Ongoing Mitigate 

Terms and Condition of Use for customers 

provided to all members and on the 

website. Centre emergency plans include 

how to deal with aggressive or disorderly 

behaviour. Included in staff training and 

shared learning experiences following 

instances. 

LeisureSK Ltd Team, LeisureSK Ltd Board 

of Directors   
3 2 6

69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix Three – Marketing Plan 2021/22 

 

 

March April May June July August September October November December January February

National 

Events

FA Cup Final Wimbledon/Tour 

De France

Wimbledon/ Tour 

De France

Olympics/ 

Paralympics

Rugby World 

Cup

Christmas Winter Olympics

National 

Campaigns

International 

Womens Day 

Mental Health 

Awareness 

Week. Learn to 

swim week

Men's Health 

Week 

NHS Day. Carers 

Awareness 

Week 

Cycle to work 

Day 

Know Your 

Numbers, Blood 

Pressure 

Awareness. 

National Fitness 

Day

Stoptober. Back 

Care Week 

Move more for 

Movember

Dry January Time to Talk 

Mental Health 

Membership 

Promotion

Making Your 

Fitness Goals 

Our Own, 4th 

month free

Making Your 

Fitness Goals 

Our Own, 4th 

month free

Making Your 

Fitness Goals 

Our Own, 4th 

month free

Refer a Friend 

loyalty offer, 

both receive 4th 

month free

Refer a Friend 

loyalty offer, 

both receive 4th 

month free

Promote annual 

12 months for 

price of 10 

memberships

Promote annual 

12 months for 

price of 10 

memberships

Making Your 

Fitness Goals 

Our Own, 6th 

month free

Making Your 

Fitness Goals 

Our Own, 6th 

month free

Beat the 

'January Rush', 

join now pay 

nothing until 

January.

Promote no 

contract 

memberships

Valentines offer - 

two 

memberships 

only one joining 

fee.

Primary 

Fitness

Countdown to 

reopening. 

Building 

Momentum, 

Behind the 

Scenes

Social norm / 

Confidence 

Building. 

Popularity of 

online classes

Social norm / 

Confidence 

Building. 

Popularity of 

online classes

You can't go 

away, but you 

can still come to 

Leisure SK. 

You can't go 

away, but you 

can still come to 

Leisure SK. 

You can't go 

away, but you 

can still come to 

Leisure SK. 

Back to School, 

Back to the 

Gym. 

No Half 

measures this 

Half term. All 

inclusive 

memberships

Winter 

Workouts. 

Festive Fitness "New year, new 

you"

"Love you, Love 

me more" 

Membership 

Offer

Secondary 

Fitness

Refer a Friend Refer a Friend Refer a Friend Refer a Friend Refer a Friend Refer a Friend Refer a Friend Give the Gift of 

Fitness

Refer a Friend Refer a Friend

Swim School 

Promotion

£0 pro-rata on 

new joiners "Join 

now for the new 

school year"

£0 pro-rata on 

new joiners from 

mid-Nov "Join 

now for January"

£0 pro-rata on 

new joiners "Join 

now for January"

Swim School Can't wait to 

Dive Back in, 

reopening 

comms 

Water Safety- 

Safe for 

Summer.  

May Crash 

Courses

Water Safety- 

Safe for 

Summer/ 

Drowning 

Prevention Week 

Summer Holiday 

Splash. Summer 

Holiday Crash 

Courses

Back to School 

Back in the Pool

Back to School, 

Back to the Pool

October Crash 

Courses

Swim School 

Popularity/Offer

Swim for Santa Family Splash Feb Half Term 

Crash Courses

Engagement 

Fitness 1

Workout 

Wednesdays- 

New class focus

Workout 

Wednesdays- 

New Class focus

Workout 

Wednesdays- 

New Class focus

Workout 

Wednesdays- 

New Class focus

Engagement 

Fitness 2

Motivational 

Monday's Gym 

Challenge

Motivational 

Monday's Gym 

Challenge

Motivational 

Monday's Gym 

Challenge

Motivational 

Monday's Gym 

Challenge

Engagement 

Swim

Fin Friday Fin Friday Fin Friday Fin Friday Fin Friday Fin Friday Fin Friday

Ongoing 

General

App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads App Downloads

New Joiners

Existing Members

71

A
ppendix 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Companies Committee: Work Programme 2021/22 

No  Item Meeting 
Date 

Lead Officer Requirements Notes  
(including reporting 
timeframes) 

1.  Gravitas Housing Ltd - 
update 

26 April 
2022 

Richard Wyles, 
Chief Finance 
Officer 

• Further Business update report  

2.  LeisureSK Ltd 26 April 
2022 

LeisureSK Ltd 
Board 

• Business Plan 2022/23  

3.  EMBC Update 26 April 
2022 

Anne-Marie 
Coulthard, Assistant 
Director – 
Operations & Public 
Protection  

• Review of the East Midlands 
Building Consultancy Business 
Plan 

Annual update 
 
 

 

Items to be allocated  

Final performance of Gravitas Housing Ltd 
 

Date TBC 

InvestSK Ltd Final Accounts 2021/22 
 

Date TBC 

 

77

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2022
	4 Updates from the previous meeting
	5 East Midlands Building Consultancy 2021/22 Update
	Appendix 1
	Exempt Apppendix 2

	6 Gravitas Housing Limited Housing update
	Scanned Exempt doc
	Meadow Close AppB

	7 LeisureSK Limited Business Plan
	Appendix One - Business Plan LeisureSK
	Appendix Two - LeisureSK Ltd Risk Register
	Appendix Three - Annual Marketing Plan
	EXEMPT Appendix Four - Exempt Information

	8 Work Programme 2021 - 2022

